ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 5, 2003
3:15 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Tom Anderson, Chair
Representative Bob Lynn, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Carl Gatto

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford

MVEMBERS ABSENT
Representative David CGuttenberg
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 135
"An Act relating to marital and fam |y therapists.”

- MOVED HB 135 QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 120
"An  Act excluding service contracts from regulation
i nsurance; and providing for an effective date.”
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HB 135
SHORT TI TLE: MARI TAL & FAM LY THERAPI STS
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) W LSON

as

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

02/ 26/ 03 0307 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 26/ 03 0307 (H L&C, HES

02/ 26/ 03 0307 (H REFERRED TO LABOR & COMMVERCE

03/ 05/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 120
SHORT TI TLE: SERVI CE CONTRACT SALES ARE NOT | NSURANCE
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) COGHI LL

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- March 5, 2003



Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

02/ 24/ 03 0286 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME -
REFERRALS

02/ 24/ 03 0286 (H) L&C

02/ 24/ 03 0286 (H REFERRED TO LABOR & COMVERCE

03/ 05/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY W LSON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor of HB 135, explained the nmjor
changes in each section of the bill

LARRY HOLMAN, Chai rperson

Board of Marital and Fam |y Therapy;

| medi at e Past Presi dent

Al aska Associ ation for Marriage and Fam |y Therapy

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 135, explaining
how the board and the professional organization collaborated on
the bill's provisions; answered questions about title protection
for marital and famly therapists.

VI VI AN FI NLAY, Menber

Board of Marital and Fami |y Therapy

Wasi |l a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 135, noting that
the board resolved to support these changes two years ago; spoke
to the changes in the confidentiality exenption.

Bl LL PLATTE, Menber

Board of Marital and Fam |y Therapy

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 135 and descri bed
how therapists handle reports of immnent harm to |aw
enforcenment officers and potential victins.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHN COGHI LL

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor of HB 120, presented the bil
and explained the need to separate service contracts out of the
i nsurance industry with its high I evel of regul ation.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- March 5, 2003



STAN RI DGEVWAY, Deputy Director

Di vision of |nsurance

Department of Comrunity and Economi ¢ Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions about HB 120, discussing
the differences between service contracts, warranties, and
mai nt enance agreenents; described the work of the division's
consuner conplaint office.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-17, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R TOM ANDERSON cal | ed the House Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:15 p.m Represent ati ves
Ander son, Lynn, Dahlstrom and Crawford were present at the cal
to order. Representatives Gatto and Rokeberg arrived as the
meeting was in progress.

HB 135- MARI TAL & FAM LY THERAPI STS

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 135, "An Act relating to marital and famly
t herapi sts.”

Nunber 0085
The commttee took an at-ease from3:16 to 3:18 pm

[The followng paragraph is reconstructed from the sponsor
statenent and sectional analysis because it was not recorded on
t he tape.]

REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY WLSON, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor
of HB 135, stated that the |aw establishing the Board of Marita
and Fam |y Therapy has been in place for 10 years, and it's tine
to update the | anguage. She said HB 135 will upgrade Al aska
laws on marriage and famly therapy so they are on a par wth
other states' laws and are consistent with other fornms of
counseling services in the state. Section 1 adds the board to
the list of boards that nmay request the Division of Cccupationa
Licensing to contract for substance abuse treatnent for |icensed
t her api st s. Section 2 authorizes the board to order a licensed
marital and famly therapist to submt to a physical or nenta
examnation if there is a credible question about the
therapist's capacity to practice safely.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- March 5, 2003



Number 0123

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON said Section 3 addresses the direct

clinical contact tinme required for |icensing. The requirenent
is changed from three years to 1,500 working hours and allows
one-on-one client contact to be counted. Section 4 nakes
exceptions to the confidentiality rule in two situations: i f

there is a threat of physical harmto an identified victimor a
di scl osure to the board regardi ng unethical or unlawful conduct.

Number 0200

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON expl ained that Section 5 prohibits sexua
contact between therapist and client during treatnent and for

two years after treatnent ends. She said this is inportant
because a client in a vulnerable frame of mnd could be harned
by a sexual relationship wth a therapist. By way of

conpari son, she said social workers are prohibited from sexual
contact with a client for their lifetinmes. Section 6 allows the
suspension of a license if the therapist refuses the exam nation
ordered under Section 2 of the bill. Section 7 requires a
di sclosure statenent so the client learns in advance sone key
details of therapy: the fees, the therapist's professional
education, and the confidentiality exceptions. Representati ve
Wl son concluded that the section also prohibits a I|icensed
therapist from practicing if the person |acks the appropriate
qgqual i fications under the | aw

Nunmber 0377

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN began discussion of what he would |later
of fer as Amendnent 1. He raised a question about the |anguage
in the new subsection (5), page 3, lines 29-31, which reads

"(5) a communication to a potential victimor to |aw enforcenent
officers where a threat of inmm nent serious physical harm to an
identified victim has been made by a client;". He asked about
the use of the word "or" instead of "and" on line 29. He said
the therapist should warn both the victim and the |aw
enforcenment officer.

Number 0400

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON said she would not oppose such an
amendnent .

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- March 5, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that substituting the word "and" for
"or" would require that both the potential victimand the police
both be notified, never singularly. He said he doesn't think
that's the intent of the | aw.

Nunmber 0516

LARRY HCOLMAN, Chairperson, Board of Marital and Fam |y Therapy;
| medi ate Past President, Alaska Association for Marriage and
Fam |y Therapy, spoke in support of HB 135. He expl ai ned t hat
this bill is the result of a collaboration between the
regul atory board, which is charged with protecting the public,

and the professional association, which pronotes the marriage
and famly therapist profession. He said it's an unusual

col | aboration because the interests are different but both
groups want to achieve the same results. He said the issue of
sexual relationships has not been clearly spelled out in the
board's regul ati ons, and t hat bot h groups want ed no
m sinformati on or msunderstanding about the ethics of these
cases. The groups also wanted to update the initial laws from
when therapists were first regulated; today the laws fall short
of the standards for other professions both in Alaska and
nationw de. He said all of Al aska's other regulatory boards and
mental health professions have laws simlar to HB 135. He
explained that the Board of Marital and Family Therapy supports
these inclusions as vital to the protection of the public. The
Al aska Association for Marriage and Famly Therapy supports HB
135 because its goal is to maintain credibility and high ethica

standards for therapists. Each provision derives from years of
practi ce.

MR. HOLMAN commented on the possible anmendnent discussed earlier
that would substitute "and" for "or"™ on page 3, line 29. He
said the intent of that l|language is really to nmake it clear to
soneone that there may be imm nent serious physical harm He
said "and" is not necessary and "or" is sufficient.

Number 0754

VI VI AN FI NLAY, Menber, Board of Marital and Famly Therapy,
noted that she is a licensed marriage and famly therapist
practicing in Wasilla. She said the group's professional ethics
prohi bit sexual contact between the therapist and the client

during treatnent and for two years after treatnent ends. She
said she wanted to make sure that the law is at |east as strong
as the group's ethical code. If an association ethic is
violated, a therapist would |ose the state license. In March

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- March 5, 2003



2001, the Board of Marital and Famly Therapy discussed these

changes and resolved to support future |[|egislation. She al so
coomented on the possible anmendnment regarding notifying a
potential victim and I|aw enforcenent about immnent harm

Prof essional standards already require therapists to report
serious threats to a potential victim or a |aw enforcenent
of ficer. She suggested leaving the "or" in place because
t herapi sts' ethical standards do not require both.

Nunmber 0870

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked about the liability for not reporting
i mm nent harm

M5. FINLAY said her understanding is that if therapists don't
follow state regulations, they can be investigated, and their
| i censes can be revoked.

Number 0905

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked M. Finlay to confirm that the
profession's ethical requirenents require reporting to the
victimor |aw enforcenent but not to both. He then asked if the
prof ession's ethical standards should be raised to require both.

MS. FINLAY confirnmed that the association's standards require
reporting to one or the other person but not both. She
expl ai ned that therapists have to do what is nobst appropriate in
the situation. If a person threatens to go hone and kil
sonebody at hone, the therapist would Ilikely contact the
potential victim Because no crinme has been conmtted, the
t herapi st doesn't necessarily notify the police, but the person
m ght want to do that as well.

Number 0961

CHAI R ANDERSON described a less volatile scenario in which a
husband tal ks about hitting his wife sonetine. Chair Anderson
suggested that in this circunstance, contacting the wife would
be reasonabl e but contacting the police wouldn't be reasonabl e.

MS. FINLAY said it's a judgnent call for the therapist; this is
why ethics aren't black and white. Therapists probably woul dn't
report that instance because there's no threat of harm happening
i mredi atel y.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN sai d he objects to situational ethics.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- March 5, 2003



Number 1136

BILL PLATTE, Menber, Board of Marital and Famly Therapy,
explained that therapists are obligated to report inmnent
threats of harm He said in his 23 years of experience as a
marital and famly therapist, every tine he's reported, it was
to law enforcenent. He added that there have been tines when
reporting to the potential victim would have been problematic.
He said he favors the "or" as witten in HB 135.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked why M. Platte wouldn't call the spouse if
t he other spouse was threatening nurder.

MR. PLATTE replied, in that specific situation, that he would
contact both the threatened spouse and |aw enforcenent. He
would do everything in his power to protect the potential
victim

Nunber 1219

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked for a hypothetical situation in which
M. Platte woul dn't contact the spouse.

MR. PLATTE explained that he wouldn't contact the spouse in a
situation when the potential victim mght act inappropriately;
in that case, he would prefer to involve |aw enforcenent right
awnay.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO agreed that if +the victim decided to
retaliate and the therapist didn't act, the therapist would be
hel d |iable.

CHAIR ANDERSON said the "and" would force the therapist to
contact both the potential victim and |aw enforcenent every
time, and the therapist could be sued if the person didn't do
So.

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN said in this kind of dispute, every Kkey
person should be notified. It would be a judgnment call as to
whi ch party was contacted first.

Number 1323
CHAI R ANDERSON revi ewed the |anguage in question in context of

the bill, Section 4, page 3, which addresses confidentiality.
The section states that a therapist can never reveal the content

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- March 5, 2003



of communications with a client except for four reasons plus two
addi ti onal reasons added by Representative WIson. The |anguage
in question says that the therapist can break that pledge of

confidentiality and notify t he potenti al victim | aw
enforcenment, or both, and not be held liable for releasing the
i nformation. He pointed out that this section deals wth

rel ease of information and confidentiality. He said that adding
an "and" to this section does not force the therapist to call
both parties.

MR. PLATTE agreed with Chair Anderson.

Number 1419

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he would prefer to raise the required
reporting froma judgnent call to a higher ethical standard.

Nunber 1429

CHAI R ANDERSON reiterated that this section of the bill, which
deals with licensure, releases therapists from confidentiality
in certain cases. He suggested that required reporting 1is

probably covered in other state law, perhaps in the crimnal
stat utes.

Nunber 1462

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Platte about the new Section 7
on page 5 that requires a disclosure statenent to clients. He
inquired whether this statenent is already ©provided by
therapists and whether this disclosure would change the
relationship wth a potential «client. He asked severa
guestions about the admnistrative procedures associated wth
this disclosure.

MR. PLATTE replied that this disclosure is already in place and
bei ng used by therapists. Any therapist who does nmanaged care
or enployee-assistance work already has a form like this.
There's nothing in this section that would cause a problemto a
potential client, he added. For managed-care clients, a signed
copy is already kept in the file. He said following the
requirenents of this section it would be a mnor adjustnent.
Hi s disclosure formis one page in |ength.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Platte to provide the
commttee with an exanple of a disclosure statenent.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- March 5, 2003



Nunmber 1583

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO referred to |anguage on page 5, lines 24-
26, "the Board of Marital and Famly Therapy, which regul ates
all licensed nmarital and famly therapists”. He asked if there
are marital and famly therapists practicing in the state who
are not |icensed.

MR. PLATTE replied that there are unlicensed therapists, but
that they are not allowed to call thenselves "licensed marita
and famly therapists.” He explained that they can practice
counseling in the state, but he didn't think they could call
t hensel ves "marital and fam |y therapists.”

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO di sagreed, saying he believes that a person
can use the title "marital and famly therapist."”

Nunber 1657

MR. HOLMAN explained that a person can practice any Kkind of
therapy in Alaska without a license. He said marital and famly
t herapists do not have a "title law. " Psychol ogists do have a
title law, and only licensed psychol ogists can use that title.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that answered his question. The
unlicensed therapists would not have to provide the disclosure
required under this bill. He reflected that there are two
separate groups of marital and famly therapists, |icensed and
unlicensed, and many clients will not notice the distinction.
Nunber 1725

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG commented that there are certain
occupations that have specific prohibitions against unlicensed

people using the titles. For exanple, the commttee | ooked at
HB 9 on hone inspectors, which required that a person using that
title nust neet the provisions of |aw He asked why there

hasn't been a specific request fromlicensed marital and famly
therapists to protect their title.

Number 1844

MR. HOLMAN agreed that it's a great idea to protect the title of
licensed marital and fam |y therapists. He explained that the
board and the association have been focused on provisions of
this particular bill for the past several years. He said one of
his goals as the chairperson of the board is to begin to | ook at

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- March 5, 2003



title protection. One protection in place now for |icensed
therapists is that people who practice without a |license do not
qualify for third-party paynments and cannot work for nanaged
care. | nsurance conpanies wll not pay for unlicensed
prof essionals unless they work under the direct supervision of a
| i censed professional.

CHAIR ANDERSON asked if there have been cases of counselors
abusing the title of marital and famly therapists.

MR. HOLMAN replied that it's not a huge problem He said
several people had their |licenses revoked; they continued to
practice therapy, but they didn't call thenselves marital and
famly therapists. There is not w despread m suse of the title
because the therapist cannot get paynent and there aren't that
many clients willing to pay for this counseling out of pocket.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG replied to a question from Chair
Ander son, saying that he was not going to propose an anendnent
on the subject of title protection. It mght require opening up
the entire bill

Number 1939

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON comrented that on page 5, |line 9, a
marital and famly therapist may not charge for services unless
the person provides the disclosure statenent. She said many
unlicensed therapists in small conmunities are qualified but

don't pay the $700 licensure fee because of the small nunber of
clients.

Nunber 1982

MS. FINLAY said this clean-up bill and the |anguage quoted by
Representative WIlson on page 5, line 9, only apply to |icensed
therapists. |[If the person is a nmenber of the Al aska Association

for Marriage and Famly Therapy, he/she has to be licensed in
Al aska, and then nust use the required disclosure statenent.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he is reading this bill to see whether
he coul d beconme a marital and famly therapist without getting a
| i cense.

Nunber 2139

CHAI R ANDERSON summari zed the commttee's intentions on HB 135,
saying several commttee nenbers indicated they would like to

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- March 5, 2003



prohi bi t unl i censed marit al and famly therapists from
practicing but they do not want to initiate the change at this
stage of the |egislation.

Nunber 2168

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked about Section 1 on pages 1-2 of
the bill, in which this board can refer licensed persons who
abuse al cohol or drugs for treatnent. He asked if there's a

cost associated with this treatnent and, if so, whether there
shoul d be a fiscal note attached.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON replied that if the person is in alcoho
rehabilitation, the person can be referred to rmarital
counsel i ng.

Number 2214

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN reiterated his concerns about reporting
immnent harmto the potential victimand the police.

Number 2225

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to adopt Anmendnment 1, on page 3, line
29, in paragraph (5), line 29, deleting "or" and adding "and".

Number 2277
CHAI R ANDERSON obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON conmented that it's inportant not to put
the person doing the counseling in a position of extrene
liability. For exanple, a therapist can always |ocate the
police but may not be able to notify the potential victim

CHAI R ANDERSON explained his objection to the amendnent. He
appl auded the intent of the anmendnent, which is when serious
physical harmis threatened, the potential victimand the police
must both be contacted. But, he said, it does not belong in
this section of the bill

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he 1is less concerned about the
liability to the therapist and nore concerned about the harmto
a potential victim If the therapist nade a docunented effort
to contact both, then there would be no liability.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- March 5, 2003



A roll call vote was taken. Representative Lynn voted in favor
of Amendnent 1. Representatives Crawford, Dahlstrom Gatto,
Rokeberg, and Anderson voted against it. Therefore, Anmendnment 1
failed by a vote of 1-5.

Nunber 2357

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to report HB 135 out of commttee with
i ndi vidual recommendations and the acconpanying zero fiscal
not e. There being no objection, HB 135 was reported from the
House Labor and Conmmerce Standing Committee.

The conmittee took an at-ease from4:05 p.m to 4:11 p. m

HB 120 - SERVI CE CONTRACT SALES ARE NOT | NSURANCE

Nunmber 2379

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 120, "An Act excluding service contracts from
regul ation as insurance; and providing for an effective date."

TAPE 03-17, SIDE B
Number 2370

REPRESENTATIVE JOHN COGHILL, Alaska State Legislature, the
sponsor of HB 120, said service contracts are being treated as a

form of insurance in Al aska. Service contracts are not
insurance, he said, and in this bill he proposes excluding
service contracts from Title 21, Insurance. He pointed to the
| anguage on page 1, Section 1, line 5, of the bill that states
in part, "(e) This title does not apply to a service contract
of fered, issued". He explained that the service contract could
then be regulated through other existing laws, for exanple,
contractual law or the Unfair Trade Practices and Consuner

Protecti on Act.
Number 2300

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said that regulating service contracts as
i nsurance requires bonding and many pages of regulations. A
service contract for an appliance or a conputer doesn't involve
a risk pool; it's sinply a contract to repair the item under
certain circunstances. He explained that he considered a node

| aw used by other states but rejected that approach because he
didn't want to create nore regul ations and governnent. He said
he wants to clarify that service contracts should not be

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- March 5, 2003



regul ated under i nsurance | aw, as done by the |ast
adm ni strati on. He said he's looking for the sinple approach

Hs only question involved whether HB 120 should i nclude
autonobile service contracts that are covered under AS
45. 25. 620, Mdtor Vehicle Transacti ons.

Nunber 2210

CHAI R ANDERSON noted that the sponsor's bill packet included
information from the Departnent of Law |listing various contract
and consumer protection |aws.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL gave an exanple of one conpany, Sears,
which sells service contracts in Al aska. Its subsidiary
conpany, Sears Protection Conpany, wll not sell service
contracts in Al aska because the Division of Insurance treats it
| i ke an i nsurance conpany.

Nunmber 2146

STAN Rl DGEWY, Deput y Director, Division of | nsur ance,
Department of Community and Econom c Devel opnent, expl ained that
the division has been dealing wth conplaints about service
contracts, receiving several calls per nonth. This bill covers
service contracts on property, but the division gets calls
regarding a nmultitude of other types of contracts, for exanple,

anbul ance service, towing service, and |egal services. Thi s
| egi slation could cull sone of the snmaller service contracts for
whi ch regul ation m ght be overbearing. The current bill is very

broad and covers extended warranties and service contracts on
all property including autonobiles, honmes, and honme appliances.
He said the bill appears to be directed at itens |ike stereos,
honme appliances, or hot tubs, which range in value from $200 to
$2,000. These dollar anpbunts are quite different fromthe those
involved in a hone or autonobile warranty. He said insurance
has a very broad and conplicated definition, but sinply put,
it's a contract to pay or provide a benefit for an unforeseeable
| oss. Service contracts, including those covered by HB 120,
fall under that definition.

Number 2045

MR. RIDGEVWAY said he'd like to work with the sponsor to see if
they can narrow the scope of the bill and renove honme warranties
and autonobile extended-service contracts and warranties. He
recommended focusing on what the bill intends to cover, while
giving sone of the higher dollar itens and nore confusing

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- March 5, 2003



contracts the protection of insurance. He said there are lots
of hybrids in this field: some insurance conpanies sell service
contracts, and sone autonobile insurance covers towing and
rental reinbursenent. He strongly recommended clarifying the
scope of service contracts up front, keeping the fiscal note
|l ow, and neeting the needs of Sears and other conpanies that
woul d like to provide these contracts.

Nunber 2008
CHAI R ANDERSON asked Representative Coghill if he would agree to
hold the bill over to work with the Division of Insurance.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said yes.
Number 1997

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Ridgeway if hone warranties
conme under the Division of Insurance's purview.

MR. RI DGEWAY said yes, they do, but admtted upon questioning by
Represent ati ve Rokeberg that the division has not been enforcing
the sale of hone warranties by unlicensed sellers.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Ridgeway if his division was
concerned that consuners wouldn't have a regulatory agency to
| ook after their interests if service contracts were renoved
from oversi ght by the Division of Insurance.

Nunmber 1953

MR. RI DGEVWAY responded that the Division of Insurance has a | ot
of work to do, and HB 120 could help clarify where it should

direct its efforts. He said it's not a turf battle. He said
the division just wants to clarify what a service contract is,
for legal services, anbulance, honeowners, autonobiles - all of

t hose areas.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG proposed considering a change in
| anguage in HB 120, on page 1, line 8, after "property", to add
"or services unless sold as part of an insurance product”. He
asked if that |anguage would renove all service contracts from
the departnent. He asked if M. Ridgeway would support such a
change.

Nunmber 1899

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- March 5, 2003



MR. RIDGEWAY said that one major issue is that anyone who sells
service contracts should have an insurance license. Sone people
who sell extended warranties for autonobile dealers and hone
warranties do have insurance |icenses. But currently there are
many sellers of service contracts who are not |icensed. He said
he's not saying that they need to be |licensed; rather, the
division wants to clarify it so that staff can deal with it.

Nunber 1867

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN expl ai ned that he's an associate broker with
a real estate conpany, and occasionally he sells a hone warranty
in addition to a hone. He asked if he needs an insurance
license in addition to his real estate |icense.

MVR. Rl DGEVWAY replied t hat currently t he division's
interpretation of the insurance statute is that yes, he would
need an insurance |icense.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked what kind of fee and paperwork is
involved in registering to sell insurance.

Nunber 1825

MR. RIDGEVWAY said the cost of an insurance license is around
$200. The Modtor Vehicle Transactions |aw, AS 45.25, does not
excl ude autonobile service contracts from insurance regul ation;
it sinply tells people selling these service contracts what kind
of guidelines they have to follow He referenced node

l egislation by the NAIC [National Association of |nsurance
Comm ssi oner s] t hat has a different approach to service
contracts that would require snaller conpanies to purchase a
bond or reinbursable insurance that would pay the consuners in
case the conmpany went out of business. But, he added, the
division doesn't want to go there. He said he wants to nmake it
as sinple as possible to exenpt these types of contracts from
t he i nsurance code.

Nunber 1765

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG confirnmed M. Ridgeway's point that
under AS 45.25.620, autonobile service contracts are still an
i nsurance product regulated by the Division of Insurance. He

asked M. Ridgeway to explain his statenent about a required
bond for selling insurance.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- March 5, 2003



MR. RI DGEVAY said the bond was an option available if the state
adopted the NAIC nodel |egislation for consumer protection.

Nunber 1737

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM confirmed that an insurance agent or
broker nust also pass extensive tests in order to be licensed,
in addition to paying a fee.

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN asked how nmany |icensed real estate
practitioners are in Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said there are 1,800 to 2,000 in the
Anchorage nunicipality.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN wondered what percentage of real estate
agents in the past have sold honme warranties along with selling
or listing the house.

MR. RIDGEVAY reiterated that this part of the insurance code is
not bei ng enforced.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG expressed his frustration with |aws that
are not enforced.

Nunber 1651

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked M. Ridgeway to conment about the
recourse available to a consuner who paid $100 for a lifetinme of
oil changes and then discovered the conpany disappeared a week
| at er.

MR. RIDGEWAY said that is an exanple of a maintenance agreenent,

which is not covered under the Division of |Insurance. It is
different from a service contract that is designed to repair or
replace a product. He added that people tend to use these terns
i nt er changeabl y: referring to a maintenance agreenent as a
service contract, and a service contract as a warranty. He
explained that warranties are not insurance. Warranties are

provided only by the manufacturer; they come with the product at
no additional cost.

Nunber 1581
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said the Division of I|nsurance had no

authority to investigate individual consuner conplaints until
about three years ago, when the legislature gave the division

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- March 5, 2003



addi tional authority. Before this change, the division could
only act on a pattern of activity. He asked M. Ridgeway if the
division's ability to follow up on consunmer conplaints was
relatively limted.

Number 1525
MR. RIDGEWAY said there are two separate issues. The division

has a section that deals only with consunmer conplaints. Those
conpl ai nts are usual l'y a m sunder st andi ng bet ween t he

pol i cyhol der and the underwriter or the agent. Division staff
are able to resolve nost of these conplaints in a relatively
short period of tine. The division's ability to |ook at
practices of the insurance industry is totally different from
hel ping a consuner resolve an issue. If HB 120 passed and

service contracts were excluded from the division' s oversight,
then the division's consunmer protection section would not take
conpl ai nts about service contracts.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sunmarized two key issues raised in HB
120. Peopl e nust be licensed to sell honme warranties, and auto

warranties fall wunder the jurisdiction of the division. He
noted that Representative Coghill can choose to deal with only
certain types of service contracts; he can either limt or

expand the scope of the bill

Nunmber 1418

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said again that he's willing to hold the
bill over. He noted that HB 120 does not exclude autonobile
warranties under Title 45, W©Mdtor Vehicle Transactions, and that
provi sion would remain as is.

Nunmber 1395

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that HB 120 woul d be hel d over.

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
4:45 p. m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- March 5, 2003



